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HSBC
26
61,755,187.56 81.03
22,038,702.95 28.92
83,793,890.51 109.95
7,584,698.32 9.95
76,209,192.19
100.00
(7,906 )
HSBC
26
32,283,875.54 67.43
18,634,296.02 38.92
50,918,171.56 106.36
3,043,692.58 6.36
47,874,478.98
100.00
(4,966 )
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HSBC
26
D.E. Shaw Composite
1 1.00 2,071,955.91 2,071,955.91| 14,181,721.08| 14,181,721.08 16.92
International Fund
Tyrus Capital Event Fund
2 Ltd 62,795.64 116.50| 7,315,677.97 168.14| 10,558,400.59| 12.60
Redwood Opportunity
3 7,525.20 1,005.25| 7,564,694.47 1,319.99 9,933,202.33| 11.85
Offshore Fund Ltd.
Beach Point Total Return
4 6,228.99 1,119.91 6,975,916.30 1,476.72 9,198,486.02| 10.98
Offshore Fund Il Ltd.
Davidson Kempner
5 B 64,142.14 111.09| 7,125,414.06 139.08 8,921,088.74| 10.65
International (BVI), Ltd.
CQS Directional
6 |Opportunities Feeder Fund 1,741.85 1,652.29 2,878,054.65 4,836.90 8,425,179.32| 10.05
Limited
AG Super Fund International
7 Ltd 4,907.15 1,326.04| 6,507,068.94 1,691.87 8,302,272.90 9.91
8 |Marcato International Ltd 4,086.96 1,655.96| 6,767,831.00 1,702.90 6,959,698.22 8.31
9 |Third Point Offshore Fund 14,261.02 285.20| 4,067,293.29 294.32| 4,197,355.16 5.01
10 [Paulson Enhanced Limited 25,000.00 100.00| 2,500,000.00 99.94|  2,498,500.00 2.98
11 |Third Point Ultra Limited 555.95 1,112.16 618,301.45 1,111.59 617,986.15 0.74
Steel Partners Japan
12 |Strategic Offshore Fund, 635.81 170.03 108,107.81 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ltd.
13 |Bluebay Value Recovery Fund 22.00 167.02 3,673.75 0.00 0.00 0.00
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HSBC
26

King Street Europe Ltd. 72,606.95 112.94 8,200,177.77 144.09| 10,461,814.76 20.55
0Z Europe Overseas Fund 11,
Ltd 8,098.02 1,000.24 8,099,999.80 1,260.41| 10,206,828.33| 20.05
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Limited 1,864.16 4,381.95 8,168,669.34 5,417.51| 10,099,116.45| 19.83
JPS Credit Opportunities

. 6,973.22 1,012.45 7,060,064.56 1,190.21 8,299,577.43| 16.30
Fund (Cayman) Limited
AG Super Fund International

5,768.58 1,011.16 5,832,973.04 1,416.72 8,172,481.26| 16.05

Limited
Capeview Recovery Fund 10,660.77 335.98 3,581,798.10 345.04 3,678,353.33 7.22

26

26
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26

HSBC
20 601,665,000.00 | 62,417 113.23 11,746
1 290,572,000.00 | 30,144 78.79 8,174
92 304,090,009.72 31,546 99.12 10,283
23 244,549,884.22 | 25,370 98.58 10,227
24 105,144,171.21 | 10,908 101.25 10,504
25 82,838,978.49 8,594 119.30 12,376
2% 75,327,234.72 7,814 133.31 13,830
25 80,722,916.12 8,374 122.79 12,738
10 77,835,296.82 8,075 12487 12,954
11 79,571,301.54 8,255 127.70 13,248
12 80,521,192.88 8,353 129.13 13,396
26 75,614,865.92 7,844 129.66 13,451
77,433,116.36 8,033 132.64 13,760
77,817,816.21 8,073 133.31 13,830
75,327,234.72 7,814 133.82 13,882
76,347,094.77 7,920 135.74 14,082
77,494,481.17 8,039 137.75 14,290
75,657,898.95 7,849 136.78 14,190
76,209,192.19 7,906 139.40 14,461

HSBC 23 9 30
SOF
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HSBC
20
21
115.48 11,980
192,290,303.33 | 19,948
22 115.58 15,807
119.00 12,345
196,702,676.72 | 20,406
23 119.21 16,303
101.37 10,516
63,926,197.49 6,632
24 101.18 13,837
111.53 11,570
61,181,867.70 6,347
25 111.02 15,183
120.09 12,458
52,763,721.75 5,474
26 119.32 16,318
113.20 11,743
25 60,860,670.91 6,314
112.58 15,396
115.34 11,965
10 60,408,228.06 6,267
114.63 15,677
116.62 12,098
11 61,393,247.91 6,369
115.92 15,853
117.10 12,148
12 61,740,453.90 6,405
116.36 15,913
118.37 12,280
26 57,671,320.13 5,983
117.65 16,090
119.30 12,376
58,333,131.33 6,051
118.55 16,213
119.62 12,409
59,090,497.06 6,130
118.86 16,255
120.09 12,458
52,763,721.75 5,474
119.32 16,318
120.50 12,501
52,742,905.95 5,472
119.74 16,376
121.31 12,585
55,178,898.89 5,724
120.51 16,481
121.37 12,591
48,073,850.32 4,987
120.56 16,488
121.10 12,563
47,874,478.98 4,966
120.26 16,447
HSBC 21 29

HSBC

HSBC

100

HSBC
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HSBC

113.23 13.23
113.23 78.79 30.42
78.79 99.12 25.80
99.12 98.58 -0.54
98.58 101.25 2.71
101.25 119.30 17.83
119.30 133.31 11.74

100x
100
HSBC
100.00 115.48 15.48
115.48 119.00 3.05
119.00 101.37 14.82
101.37 111.53 10.02
111.53 120.09 7.68
100x
100

100.00 115.58 15.58
115.58 119.21 3.14
119.21 101.18 15.12
101.18 111.02 9.73
111.02 119.32 7.48

100x

100
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HSBC

4,737,826.52 230,352.94 4,507,473.58
187,964.07 0 187,964.07
310,168.94 1,702,657.10 3,114,985.42
14,091.91 38,272.77 163,783.21
22,025.41 490,166.16 2,646,844.67
5,324.45 23,195.70 145,911.96
9,178.26 489,428.98 2,166,593.95
©) (12,734.60) (133,177.36)

0 1,261,552.69 905,041.26

©) (73,809.92) (59,367.44)

0 264,140.63 640,900.63

©) (17,241.93) (42,125.51)
20,856.13 134,173.32 527,583.44
©) (13,040.27) (29,085.24)

HSBC
() () ()
() () ()

1,293,846.59 261,551.27 1,032,295.32
32,962.52 0 32,962.52
262,175.87 283,963.51 1,010,507.68
(19,792.46) (8,969.49) (43,785.49)
559,590.99 1,114,765.67 455,333.00
(32,033.94) (0) (75,819.43)
63,431.65 118,295.72 400,468.93
©) (57,138.82) (18,680.61)
18,058.15 104,971.60 313,555.48
©) (3,104.17) (15,576.44)
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() () ()
) ) )
188,598.70 6,665.02 181,933.68
3,685.92 0 3,685.92
76,459.49 84,960.15 173,433.02
(2,141.89) (702.95) (5,124.86)
114,417.08 202,273.17 85,576.93
(1,237.27) (0) (6,362.13)
4,307.10 28,050.09 61,833.94
©) (5,124.86) (1,237.27)
0 26,331.00 35,502.94
©) (873.93) (363.34)
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HSBC 1940

2007
2010

AML AML

HSBC
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HSBC
100,000 HSBC
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2001

1988 2003

EU

http://www.hsbcnet.com/gbm/global-utilities/privacy-data-protection.html
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HSBC
2014 4 30

2014 4 30 2013 4 30
82,938 8,604 87,197 9,046
6 55 6 2,289 237
7 23 2 119 12
78 8 2,408 250
83,016 8,612 89,605 9,296
8 (7,689) (798) (6,766) (702)
(7,689) (798) (6,766) (702)
75,327 7,814 82,839 8,594

2014 9 23 HSBC
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HSBC
2014 4 30
2014 4 30 2013 4 30
3 11,346 1,177 17,244 1,789
11 (39) (0 (©) €Y
4 (1,995) (207) (2,019) (209)
(2,034) (211) (2,028) (210)
9,312 966 15,216 1,579
2014 4 30
2014 4 30 2013 4 30
82,839 8,594 105,144 10,908
2,733
(19,557) (2,029) (37,521) (3,892)
(16,824) (1,745) (37,521) (3,892)
9,312 966 15,216 1,579

75,327 7,814 82,839 8,594
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HSBC 2013
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HSBC
100
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SORP
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2014 30 2013 30
11,026 17,418
320 (174)
11,346 17,244
2014 30 2013 30
(1,296) (1,516)
(548) (312)
(1,844) (1,828)
(79) (99)
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(24) 24)
(48) (73)
(72) 7
(1,995) (2,019)
HSBC 2007 HSBC
1.65
0.90 1,295,676 2013
1,515,684 2013
2007 HSBC
HSBC HSBC
12
547,673 2013 312,305 161,142
2013 312,305
HSBC 2007 HSBC
2008 31
HSBC C.1. 0.10
78,548 2013 94,435
2013
2014 30 2013 30
55 2,271
12 15
3
55 2,289

2014 30 2013 30
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2014 30 2013 30

11 (7,501) (6,421)

(161) (312)

12 (26)
(€)) (33)
(7,689) (6,766)
HSBC 1989
600
640,900.63 43,225.10 684,125.73
20,856.13 20,856.13
(134,173.32) (16,153.20) (150,326.52)
527,583.44 27,071.90 554,655.34
2013 30

905,041.26 59,981.81 56,051.40 1,021,074.47
(264,140.63) (16,756.71) (56,051.40) (336,948.74)
640,900.63 43,225.10 684,125.73
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2014 4 30 70,601 4,726 75,327
2013 4 30 76,458 6,381 82,839
2012 4 30 91,630 7,628 5,886 105,144
11
HSBC C.1.
HSBC
25
10
HSBC C.l1.
7,501,000 2013 6,421,000 39,145
2013 9,148 0.9900 2013 1.0298
12
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2014

2014

2013

2013

2013

13

30

31

31

30

31

31

HSBC

3,400,268

23,029

HSBC

4,766,143

61,183

4,712,397

31,934

6,210,713

79,664
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(25,323)
(190)

(25,513)

(25,513)

14,987
255

15,242

15,242
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7,501,000 2013 6,421,000
0.9900
2013 1.0298
23,007 2013 119,240
2014 30
4,718 4,718
2013 30

20 6,305 6,325
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2014 30
A+ 2013 A+
HSBC
2014 31 Aa3
2013 31 AA-
2014 30 90
2014 30

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special

Investment 17

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special

Investment 14
31

72/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2013 30 90
2013 30

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special

Investment 22
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special
Investment 18
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S 20
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - USD Class S 33
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class A Series
155 SP2 145
238
14
15
2014 30 2013 30
16
2014 30 2013 30
0.7254 0.7657
17
2014 29
18
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HSBC

2014 4 30

(2013 :0.02%)
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR

Class S 1 - -
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR
Class S - GSY 210 - -

(2013  :105.24%)

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX

Series 1 2,637 4,361 5.79
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX

Series 1 - Special Investment 10 17 0.02
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX

Series 2 2,251 3,724 4.95
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX

Series 2 - Special Investment 9 14 0.02
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS

Series V 01 Nov 2007 GSY 6,734 9,846 13.07
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - USD

Class S 1 - -
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd.

- Class B USD Shares Non New lIssues 1,742 8,214 10.90
D.E.Shaw Composite International Fund - April

1st Subscription 1 13,531 17.96
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. -

Class C Tranche 4 41,174 4,921 6.53
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C

Tranche 1 Series 1 Jan 12 — GSY 358 173 0.23
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C

Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 13 - GSY 31,734 5,084 6.75
Marcato International Fund Class B - Sub Class

B1 Initial Series 4,087 6,338 8.41
Pershing Square International Ltd. - Class E

Series 1R 768 1,683 2.23
Redwood Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. — Class

A Series 45 7,525 9,786 12.99
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund,

Ltd. - Class A Series 155 SP2 636 - -
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class E - GSY 2,842 922 1.22
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class F -

Series 3 11,000 1,085 1.44
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - GSY 419 1,973 2.63
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Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD -

GSY 68,696 11,266 14.96
82,938 110.10

(2013 :105.26%) 82,938 110.10

(7,611) (10.10)

75,327 100.00
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2014 30 2013 30
HSBC 133.82 119.30
HSBC 126.65 113.04
2014 30 2013 30
0.00% 0.06%
100.00% 99.94%
100.00% 100.00%
2014 30 2013 30
50.10% 50.90%
26.20% 25.90%
11.90% -
11.80% 23.20%
100.00% 100.00%

76/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014 4 30
Marcato International Fund Class B Jul 13 6,000 6,000
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - GSY 419 2,029
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class F - Series 3 11,000 1,100
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class E - GSY 2,842 938
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S 1 25
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S - GSY 42 3
Trian Partners Ltd. - Class D Restricted Option 2 Series 43 7,980 10,444
Pershing Square International Ltd. - Class E Series 1R 3,072 5,644
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD
Shares Non New lIssues 479 2,000
Redwood Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Common Shares Series 45 1,428 1,750
Highland Crusader Il Fund 1 1,172
Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 8,826 1,000
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Jan 12 Subscription - GSY 6,949 999
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS Series V 01 Nov 749
2007 - GSY 525
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 1st Subscription 2 724
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class A 252
Series 155 SP2 216
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - USD Class S 2 81
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S 1 75
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S - GSY 486 30

2014 30
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT AS AT 30 APRIL 2014

As al As al
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
Assels Motes  USF000 USE'000 US5000 US$'000
Portfolio of invesiments 82,938 87,187
Dabtors ] 55 2289
Cash and bank balancas ¥ 23 118
- __ 2408
Tolal assels 83.016 89,605
Liabilities
Craditors: amounis falling due within ona year 8 (7 680) 6,786
Tolal Liabilities {7.689) (6, 766)
Met assets altribulable 1o the holders of
redeemable participating shares 75,327 82,839
The conscidated financial staternents on pages B 1o 18 were approved by the manager, HSBC Management {Guemsay).
Limited, on L3 2014 and were signed on its behaifl by
]'k
Kwan Queanpal l{asm« for Kate Charles)
N
- f !
(NN e
Mail Allkan

Thea notes on pageas 10 to 18 form an integral part of thesa consolidaled financial statemanis
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2014

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2014 30 Apeil 2013
Moles US3000 US$000 USs000 US5'000

Income
Met capilal gains 3 11,346 17,244
Finance costs: interest 1" (39) {4)
Operaling expenses 4 {1.885) (2,019)
Met expenses {2.034) (2,028)
Change in nel assels attributable 1o the holders of
redeamabée participaling shares from invesiment activities 9,312 15,216

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2014

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
US3'000 US5'000 US3'000 USS'000

Met assets attributable 1o the holders of redeamable

participating shares al the start of the year 82,839 105,144
Movarmant due 1o issue and redemplion of
reédeemable participating shares:
Amounis recelvedireceivable on lssues 2,733 .
Less: Amounts paid/payable on redemptions (19.557) 37,521
{18,824) {37.521)
Change in ned assets atiributable to the holders of
redeemabde paricipating shares from investmant
activilies 8,312 15,216
Met assets attribulable to the holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the year 75,337 82,839

The noles on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUMNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund (the “Trust™) is a sub-fund of HSBC Allarmative Strategy Fund, 8 Guemnsey unit
trust scheme established as an umbrella fund which is authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Authorised
Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 2013,

Tha Trust owns 100% of the shares in HSBC Special Opporunities Investments Limited {the “Company™). a BV
registered company. The Trust also loaned monies lo the Company to fund its investing activities.

Tha Company owns the invastrments lsted in the Portfolio of investments. The purpose of the Company 1S 1o ensure
that any wilhholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

These consclidated financial statements include all the assets and liabiities of the Trust and the Company (together
the “Fund®).

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applisd consistently in dealing with ems which are considerad
rmaterial in relation o these consolidated financial stalements:

Basls of accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the
revaluation of invesimenis and financial liablities and in accordance with applicable Uniled Kingdom Accounting
Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (the "SORP®) Bsued by Investment
Management Asseciation in October 2010.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 8 golng concem basis.

Basis of congoligation

The consolidated financlal statements include the results of the Trusl and its wholly-owned subsidiary HSBC
Spacial Opporunities Investments Limited. The Manager does not consider the unconsolidated balance sheet of

the Trust to be of any relevanca as tha only reason for seltting up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes.
Accordingly no unconsolidated balance sheat is presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presantational currency

The funclional and presentational currency s US Daollar because that is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Fund operales.

Investments

Invesiments in investment funds are valued at the closing net assel valua per share for the underlying investments
that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guernsay lime) on the Balance Sheet date, Investments in underlying funds which
are not quoled on a recognisad stock exchange or other trading faciity are valued al the net assel values provided
by such entities or their administrators. These values may be unaudited or may themsehwes be estimates. In
addition, these entities or their administralors may not provide values at all or in a timely manner and, 1o the axtent
that values are nol available, those investments will be valued by the Invesiment Manager using valuation
techniques appropriale to these invesiments. In determining fair value, the Investment Manager takes inlo
consideration, whera applicabla, the impact of suspansion of redemplions, liquidation proceedings, investments in
gide pockets and other significant factors, The Directors of the Manager have no reason lo believe thal the
waluations used are unraasonable.

Realised and unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included on the Consolidaled Statement of Total

Return. Realised gains and losses on sales of securities are delermined using the average cost method. Purchases
and sales of the invesiments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis,
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Bevanue

Investment income and deposil interest are incleded in the Consolidaled Statement of Total Return on an accruals
basis. All non-class spectfic income Is allocated to each share class in proportion to the total net assets of the share
class during the year. All class specific income is allocated to the share class to which it relates,

Expenses

Expanses are included in the Consolidated Staterment of Total Retum on an accruals basis, All non-class specific
sxpenses are allocated to each share class in proportion to the total net assets of the share class during the year,
All class specific expenses are allocated to the share class to which they relate.

f esti sand |

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principies of United Kingdom Accounting Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and labilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expenses during the year,

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed lo be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgements
about carrying values of assels and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Egrefgn curency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assels and liabikties denominated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at the fnmlgn curency closing
exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or lcss as well as the
unrealised axchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated investments in the Consolidated
Statement of Total Return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or depreciation
afsing from non-US Dollar denominated payables and recaivables and on foreign cumency ansaclions are
reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Total Return.

Eorward forsign exchange coniracts
The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchangs contracts is calculated by reference
to the difference between the contracted rate and the rale o close out the contract. Unrealised appreciation is

reported as an asset and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheet Al net
gains or losses on forward foreign exchange confracts are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Tolal Return.

Cash
Cash comprises currant deposits with banks,

Sash Flow Stalement

Under Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (Revised) the Fund is exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash
flow statement as it complies with the conditions for open-ended investment funds.

Bomowing costs
Borrowing costs arise from credit facllities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Consclidated
Statement of Total Return on an accruals basis.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Form n
In accordance with the Fund's Prospactus the formation costs will be amortised over a period not exceeding five
years or such shorter period as the Manager may determine. This treatment is in line with the Prospectus but not in
line with United Kingdom Accounting Standards. This departure from United Kingdom Accounting Standards does
not have a matenal impact on the results reported in the consclidated financial statements.

res in

Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the option of the holder of redeemable participating shares and
will be classified as financial Eabilities.

Fair values of financial | [Egbyili

Al of the financial assets and labiliies of the Fund are held at fair values,

The net gainfoss on financial assets and labilities are disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Total Retumn.
Fealised gains and losses on the sale of securities are determined using the average cost methad.

3 MET CAPITAL GAINS

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
US3'000 US$000
Met capital gaing on non-derivative investments 11,028 17.418
Mat capital gains/(losses) on dervative investments 320 (174}
Total net capital gains 11,348 17.244
4 OPERATING EXPEMNSES
Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
US$000 Us$'000
Fayable o the Manager and its associales:
Management fees (1,298) {1,518}
Performance fees (548) {312}
[1,844) (1.828)
Payable io the Trustes and its associates:
Trustee fees k)] (84)
Other expenses:
Audit fees (24) (24
Other sundry expenses (48) 73
{72] {97)
Tatal expenses (1,895) (2,019)
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5 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the tarms of a Trust Deed dated 8 February 2007, which includes the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund,
HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited was appointed the Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative
affairs. The Manager receives a fee of 1.65% of the net asset value per annum for the US Dollar Class and the Euro
Class, and a fee of 0.90% for the Institutional Class (US Dollar). The Management fee for the year amounted to
US$1,295,676 (2013 USS1,515,684). The fee outstanding at year end was USSNil (2013 USSNI).

Under the terms of a Trust Deed dated 8 February 2007, the Manager appointed HSBC Alternative Investments
Limited as the Investment Adviser of the HSBC Allernative Strategy Fund, which constitutes the HSBC Special
Opportunities Fund. The Investment Adviser is entitled to receive a performance fee if the percentage increase in
the net asset value per share at the relevant valuation point compared with the net asset value per share af the start
of the current performance period exceeds the calculated return on the relevant index (the “Index Return®) and the
net asset value per share at the start of the performance period is not less than the net asset value per share at the
end of any previous performance period, The Index Return is calculated as the percentage increase of an imputed
investment in the index over the performance period, including appropriate compounding effects whera applicable,
with the index being updated in line with prevaiing market interest rates as at the last valuation point in March,
June, September and Decamber. The performance fee for the year amounted to US$547 673 (2013: US$312,305).
The fee outstanding at the year end was US$161,142 (2013: US$312,305).

Under the tarms of a Trust Deed dated & February 2007, which includes the HSBC Special Oppertunities Fund,
HSBC Private Bank (Guernsey) Limited was appeinted the Trustee. With effect 31 May 2008, the Trustee changed
% name to HSBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited. The Trustee receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset value per
annum, The Trustee fee for the year amounted to USS7A.548 (2013: US584.435). The fee culstanding at the year
end was UISSNI (2013: USSNT).

DEETORS As al As al

30 April 2014 30 April 2013

USE000 US5$000

Sales awailing setbement 58 227
Unrealised gains on forward foraign axchange conlracts

(see Mote 12) . 15

Cther deblors - 3

55 2288

7 CASH AND BAMK BALAMCES As at As al

30 April 2014 30 April 2013

USE000 US5000

Cash and bank balances 23 119

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Custodian™) and HSBC Private
Bank (C.|.) Limited (tha "Trustea®™). The Fund's cash is malntained within the Custodian's sub-custodial network in
segregated accounts. The credit rating of State Street Corporation, the parent company of the Custodian, at 30 April
2014 was A+ (2013: A+). The credit rating of HSBC Holdings ple, the ultimate parent of the Trustee, at 30 April
2014 was Aa3l as rated by Moody's Ratings Agency. The credit rating of the Trustee at 30 Apnl 2013 was AA- as
rated by Standard and Poor's Ratings Agency. The Trustee is no longer saparately rated.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR As at As at

30 April 2014 30 Apnl 2013

USE000 USs'000

Leans payable (see Note 11) {7.501) (B.421)

Accrued Performance fees (161} {312)
Unsealised loss on forward foreign exchange condracts

(see Mote 12) (26) *

Oiher creditors [Lh] (33)

(7.683) {8, T65)
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

g TAXATION STATUS

The umbrelia fund, HSBC Allernative Strategy Fund, is exempt from Guemsay income tax under the Income Tax
{Exempt Bodies) (Guernsey) Ordinances 1988 and is charged an annual exemplion fee of GBP 800 (2013. GBP

600).
10 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE

Institutional Tatal
US Dollar Eura Class MNumber of
Class Class *(US Doliar) Shares in issue
Redeemable Participating Shares
in issue at 1 May 2013 640,900.63 43,225 10 - 684,12573
Isswed on Subscriptions 20,856,113 - - 20,858.13
Redemptions (134,173.32)  (16.153.20) - (150,326.52)
Redesmable Participating Shares
in issue at 30 April 2014 527 583.44 27.071.90 - 554,655.34

*The Institutional Class (US Dollar) was fully redeemed during the year ended 30 April 2013 but is still open for
subscriptions.

Institutional Taotal
US Dodlar Euro Class Number of
Class Class *(US Dollar) Shares in ssue
Redeamable Partcipating Shares
in issue at 1 May 2012 005,041,268 59,981.81 56,051.40 1.021,074.47
Redemplions _ (@64 140.63) (16.756.71) (56.051.40) (335,948.74)
Redeemable Parficipating Shares
in issue at 30 April 2013 540,900.63 43,225.10 - B84,125.73

All series of shares rank egqually for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights attached to them
ather than management fee rates as noled in Note 5.

The Manager may limit the number of shares in the Trust which may be redeemed on any dealing day to not more
than 15% of the total number of shares In issve immediately before such date. Any redemption of shares during the
first 12 calendar months from the date of subscription shall be subject to a redemption fee payable fo the Fund and
aqual to 5% of redamption proceeds. Thereafter the redemption fee shall be 0%.

A maximum initial charge of up to 3% of subscription monies may be charged on all classes at the Manager's
discration.

Instituticnal

US Dollar Eurg Class
Class Class {US Dollar) Tetal
US5'000 US5'000 US$000 UsSs'000
Met Agsets at 30 Apdl 2014 70,601 4,726 - 75,327
HNet Assets at 30 April 2013 76,458 6,381 = 82,838
Net Assets at 30 Apnil 2012 91,630 7.628 5886 105,144

11 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited acts as Trustes to the Fund

The Fund also placed money on deposit with the Trustee on a regular basis throughout the year. The interest rate
receved is congistent with that received on a normal commercial deposit.

HSBC Altemative Investments Limited (the 'Investment Adviser) & wholly owned by parties that are affikated with
the Manager and the Trusiee
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HSEBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Loan

The Fund has the ability to berrow up to 25% of its net asset value for a period of up to one manth 1o cover a cash
shortfall caused by mismaiched settiement dates on purchase and sale transactions of Investment Funds: and for a
period of up to three months to fund redemptions; and for invesiment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the
Fund's net asset value, to faciitate additional invesiment in Investment Funds. There were no breaches of thase
borrowing restrictions by the Fund during the year,

HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited provided credit faciities 1o the Fund during the year. At the year end the loan
outstanding was US$7,501,000 (2013 USS6,421,000). The interest paid during the year was US$39,145 (2013
US55, 148). The interest rate pravailing at the Balance Sheet date is 0.9900% (2013 1.0288%). The loan is
repayable on demand.

There were no other related parly transactions for the year othes than fees pald to the Manager, Trustee and
Investment Advisor as outlined in Note 5.

12 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Agsats may be dencminated in currencies other than the functional cumrency of each share class and certain
cumancy exposure will be hedged back to the relevant share class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by
means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by using such other derivative
instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Investment Adviser retains the right to
vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the holders of
the relevant share class only.

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2014 in respect of the hedging of
the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sald Countarparty Unml:-had
LEE
uUss

31-May-14 EUR3,400.268 US54,712,307 State Street Bank (25,323)
3-May-14 EURZ23,029 LIS531 934 State Street Bank (190}

(25,513)
Met unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 125,513}

The following forward foredgn exchange contracts were outstanding at 30 April 2013 in respect of the hedging of
the HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Eure Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Galn
uUss
31-May-13 EUR4, 766,143 US$6,210,713 State Strest Bank 14,987
31-May-13 EURE1,183 LUS578.664 State Street Bank 255

15,242
Met unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 15,242
13 FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The main risks arising from the Fund's financial instruments are market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk
Markeat risk
Market risk arises malnly from uncertalnly aboul fulure prices of financial instruments held, It represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements, The

Investment Adviser considers the asset allocation of the portfolio in crder to minimise the risk associated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund's Investment objective
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market risk {continued)

Market risk ambodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk. The profitability of the Fund's investmant programme depends to a great extent on correct assessments of the
future course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments, There can be no assurance that
the Manager will be able o accurately predict these price movemants. The securities markels hava in recent years
been characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the investment strategy Into which the
Invesiment Adviser has invested the Fund's assets, there is always some, and from time to time a significant,
degrea of market risk.

Dedails of the Fund's investment portfalio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of Investments
included on pages 19 and 20,

(a) Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or cufrency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual
imvestment, its issuer or all factors affecting all investments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard invesiment and borrowing restricions as defined in the
Prospectus. The Fund's invesiment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Trustes of the Fund and
reviewsd monthly by the Manager. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches,
and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels,

(b} Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund's financial assets are investments in investment funds which neither pay interest nor have
a maturity date. The underlying funds the Fund invests in are exposed to Interest rate risk; however, th Fund
mifigates this risk by diversifying its invesiments.

The Fund has borrewed LISS7,501,000 at year end (2013: US56,421,000). To minimise s interest rate risk lhe
Fund enters in floating rate loan agreemants. The interest rate prevailing al the Balance Sheet date is 0.9800%
{2013 1.0298%).

The Fund is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of US$23,007 (2013 US5115,240).

(e} Forelgn currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated In currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequantly the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative to
other foreign cumencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the
Fund's assets or liabilities dencminated in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Funds cumency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adwiser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. All currency exposure al the porticlio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant share
class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards, The Fund's overall currency positions and exposures
are monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund also offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Euro exposing the Fund to forgign curmency
risk, This risk is mitigated by the Fund entering inte fanward foreign exchange contracts as described further in this
nata.

The following table sets out the Fund's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2014,

Monetary Assets
Currancy and Liabilities Total Forward FX Met

UISE000 US5'000 US5'000

Eurg 4718 4,718
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market risk |continued)

{c) Foralgn currency risk (continued)

The following table sets oul the Fund's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2013,

Manetary Assets
Currency and Liabilities Total Forward FX Het
US$'000 Us§'000 UsS$'000
Eura 20 6,305 6,325

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrurnent will fail to discharge an cbligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Eund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it rades and also bears the risk of settlement defaull.

Cradit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactiens awalling setflement. Risk relating to unsetiled
transachions is considered small due to the short setflement period involved and the high credit quality of the
brokers used. The Fund monitors the credit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further mitigate the
eredit risk of underlying investments.

Substantially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the
“Custodian”). Bankruplcy or insclvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect lo securities held
by the Custodian to be delayed or limited, The Fund monitors its risk by monitaring the credit quality and financial
positions of the Custodian the Fund uses. The credit rating of State Streat Corporation, the parent company of the
Custodian at 30 April 2014 was A= (2013 A#).

The credit rating of HSBC Holdings plc, the ultimate parent of the Trustee, at 31 March 2014 was Aal as rated by
Moody's Ratings Agency. The credit rating of the Trustee at 31 March 2013 was AA- as raled by Standard and
Poor's Ratings Agency. The Trustea is no longer separately rated.

I addition the Fund has indinect exposure to credit risk through the credit risk held by the underlying fund
investmeants.

The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactons with a large number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk
The main labiity of the Fund is the redemption of any shares that investors wish to redeem. The risk is that the
Fund might not be able to llquidate investment positicns in order to repay amounts demanded by its shareholders.

The Fund's liquidity risk s managed on an ongeing basis by the Investment Adviser in accardance with policies and
procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited partnerships or other
wehicles that have no Bguidity. The Fund's overall liquidity risks are monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund's investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which pertain to the managament of
liquidity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a continuous basis by the Trustee of the Fund, There are
specific guidelines in place for monitering and reporling breaches, and situations where heldings come close to
restriction bevels.

All of the Funds liabilities are payable within one year and the loan is repayable on demand.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk {continued)

At the 30 April 2014 the following Investee funds had a redemption period of greater than 80 days in place o
redeam its investment holdings.

Market Value at

30 April 2014

US5000

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Serias 1 - Special investment 17
AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Investment 14

3

At the 30 April 2013 the following Imvestes funds had a redemplion period of greater than 90 days in place lo
redeem its investment holdings.

Market Value at

30 April 2013

USS'000

AG Super Fund Intemational Lid. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment 22
AG Super Fund International Ltd, - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special investment 18
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Lid. (The) - EUR Class 5 20
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Lid. (The) - USD Class S 33
Steel Partnars Japan Strategic Offshora Fund, Ltd. - Class A Series 155 sP2 145
238

14 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up®, and income will nat be
distributed but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the net asset value per share,

15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Fund had no commitment or contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2014 and 30 April 2013,
18 FOREIGN EXCHAMNGE RATE

The following foreign exchange rate was used to franslate assets and liabilities into the reporting currency (us
Dollars):

As at As al
30 April 2014 30 Apnl 2013
Euwro 0.7254 0.7657

17 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

On 28 April 2014 the Board of Directors of the Manager rescived to close the Institutional Class (U5 Dollar),
Institutional Class (Eurc) and Institutional Class (Yen).

There were no other significant events during the year which require disclosure in the consolidated financial
statemants.

18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events subsequent 1o the year end date that require adjustment to, or disclosure in these
consolldated financial statements.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2014 (UNAUDITED)

Security Description Halding Market value % of total
US$000 net assets

EUR {2013: 0.02%)
Bluabay Value Recovery Fund Lid, (The) - EUR Class S 1 *. =
Bluebay Value Recovary Fund L4, (The) - EUR Class 5 - GSY 210 " -
USD (2013: 105.24%)
AG Super Fund Intemational Lid. - Class XXXX Series 1 2,837 4,381 579
AG Super Fund Intemational Lid. - Class X20(X Series 1 - Special
Investment 10 17 0.0z
AG Super Fund Intemnational Lid. - Class X20XX Series 2 2251 3724 495
AG Super Fund Intarmational Lid, - Class X0 Series 2 - Special
Irwestrient ) 14 0.0z
Beach Point Tetal Return Offshore Fund 11 - IS Series 'V 01 Nov 2007
G5Y 6,724 8,848 13.07
Elpebay Value Recovery Fund Lid. (The) - USD Class 5 1 - -
COS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Lid. - Class B USD
Shares Non New lssues 1.742 8,214 10.90
D.E. Shaw Compasite International Fund - April 18t Subscription 1 13,53 17.96
Davidson Kempner International (BV1) Lid. - Class C Tranche 4 41,174 4821 6.53
Davidson Kempner Infarmational Lid, - Class C Tranche 1 Series 1
Jan 12 - GSY 358 173 0.23
Davidson Kempner Intermational Ltd, - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1
Jan 13 -GSY 31,734 5,084 675
Marcato International Fund Class B - Sub Class B1 Initial Series 4,087 6,338 a.41
Pershing Square International Lid. - Class E Series 1R 768 1,683 223
Redwood Opportunity Offshore Fund Lid. - Class A Series 45 7.525 9,788 1289
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshora Fund, Lid. - Class A Series
155 5P2 636 = -
Third Point Offshore Fund Lid, - Class E - GSY 2,842 922 1.22
Third Paint Offshore Fund Litd. - Class F - Serias 3 11,000 1,085 1.44
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - GSY 419 1,873 283
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD - GSY 68,696 11,266 14.86
B2.038 110.10
Partfolio of Investments (3013: 105.26%) 82938 110.10
Mot current Babilities (Incleding derivativas) (7.611) {10.10)
Total net assets 75,327 100.00

*Mo markat value i shown for these securities as the value is less than USS1,000.

Met asset value per share As at As at

30 Apdl 2014 30 Apeil 2013

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - US Dollar Class Uuss133.82 US$119.30

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund - Euro Class EUR126.65  EUR113.04
Paortfolio classification

As al As at

30 April 2014 30 April 2013

Securities with an official slock exchange listing 0.00% 0.06%

Uniisted securities 100.00% 099.94%

100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2014 (UNAUDITED)

Sector Allocation
Az at As at
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
Event Driven 50.10% 50.90%
Multi-Strategy 26.20% 26 90%
Cradit Long/'Short 11.90% -
Distressed 11.80% 23.20%

100.00% 100.00%

90/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HEBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2014" (UNALDITED)

Purchases
Daseriplion Meminal Cast
US$000
Marcato international Fund Class B Jul 13 6,000 B,000
Third Poind Uttea L1d. - Class C - GSY 419 2,029
Third Point Offshore Fund Lid. - Class F - Series 3 11,000 1,100
Third Point Offshore Fund Lid. - Class E - GSY 2,842 938
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Lid, (The) - EUR Class S 1 25
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Lid. (The) - EUR Class S - GSY a2 3
Sales
Description Mominal Procesds
USE000
Trian Partners Lid. - Class D Restncled Option 2 Seres 43 7.980 10,444
Pershing Square Inlemational Lid. - Class E Series 1R 3orz2 5,844
CQ5 Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Lid. - Class B USD Shares Non New Issues 479 2,000
Radwood Opporunily Offshore Fund Lid, - Common Shares Series 45 1,428 1,750
Highland Crusader || Fund 1 1172
Davidson Kempner Intermational (BVI) Lid. - Class C Tranche 4 8,826 1,000
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd, - Jan 12 Subscription - GSY 6,849 909
Beach Point Tetal Return Offshore Fund |l - 15 Series V 01 Nov 2007 GSY 525 749
D.E. Shaw Compaosite International Fund - April 1st Subscription 2 724
Sieel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Lid. - Class A Series 155 SP2 216 252
Bivebay Value Recovery Fund Lid. (The) - USD Class 5 2 a
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Lid, (The) - EUR Class & 1 75
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Lid, (The) - EUR Class 5 - GSY 485 30

* Significant portfollo changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net asseis
aof the Fund at the star of the year. Listed above are total purchases and tolal sales during lhe year ended 30 April 2014,
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HSBC
2014 4 30

2014 4 30 2013 4 30

55,386 5,746 62,694 6,504

6 101 10 83 9

7 239 25 105 11

340 35 188 20

55,726 5,781 62,882 6,523

8 (2,962) (307) (1,700) (176)

(2,962) (307) (1,700) (176)

52,764 5,474 61,182 6,347

2014 9 23 HSBC
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HSBC
2014 4 30
2014 4 30 2013 4 30
3 6,001 632 7,249 752
11 (24) @ ® )
4 (1,207) (125) (1,411) (146)
(1,231) (128) (1,415) (147)
4,860 504 5,834 605
2014 4 30
2014 4 30 2013 4 30
61,182 6,347 63,926 6,632
6,766 702 7,978 828
(20,044) (2,079) (16,556) (1,718)
(13,278) (1,377) (8,578) (890)
4,860 504 5,834 605
52,764 5,474 61,182 6,347

94/200



HSBC

SORP

HSBC

2011 10 30

HSBC

2010 10

95/200

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2013

HSBC

HSBC
100

HSBC



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

96/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

97/200



98/200

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014 30 2013 30
5,661 7,468
430 (219)
6,001 7,249
2014 30 2013 30
(903) (1,003)
(161) (267)
(1,064) (1,270)
(59) (64)
(24) 24)
(15) (15)
(45) (38)
(84) an
(1,207) (1,411)




2007
1.65
2013

1,003,204

2007
HSBC

54,257

2007

2013 63,819

30 A+
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HSBC
0.90
0.65 902,727
2013 5,333
HSBC
HSBC
12
160,686 2013 266,605
2013 159,206
HSBC C.l.
0.10 59,363
54,257 2013 159,206
2014 30 2013 30
64
13 22
37 61
101 83
2014 30 2013 30
239 105
2014
2013 A+
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2013 30 2013 30
11 (2,720) (1,302)
(131)
®)
(54) (159)
12 (31)
(157) (103)
(2,962) (1,700)
HSBC 1989
600
2013 600
10
2013 5 1
400,468.93 67,297.24 61,833.94 529,600.11
18,058.15 21,988.43 20,861.86 60,908 44
(104,971.60) (25,178.76) (26,331.00) (7,180.00) (163,661.36)
2014 30
313,555.48 64,106.91 35,502.94 13,681.86 426,847.19
2012 5 1
455,333.00 62,122.46 85,576.93 603,032.39
63,431.65 5,174.78 4,307.10 72,913.53
(118,295.72) - (28,050.09) (146,345.81)
2013 30
400,468.93 67,297.24 61,833.94 529,600.11
15
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2014 30
2013 30
2012 30
11
HSBC
HSBC
6
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2,720,000
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HSBC
100 100
37,654 7,795 5,840
44,664 7,553 8,965
46,155 6,307 11,464
31
C.l.
25
10
C.I.

2013 1,302,000
0.9900% 2013

15
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1,475 52,764
- 61,182
- 63,926
24,331 2013
1.0298%



2014

2014
2014

2013

2013
2013

13

30

30
30

30

31
31

HSBC

4,205,042
28,291

HSBC

80,590
6,776,211

5,827,725
39,231

104,934
8,830,012
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(31,205)
234)
(31,439)

336
21,307
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238.769 2013 105,458

2,720,000 2013 1,302,000
0.99008%
2013 1.0298
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30
30

A+

2014 30
5,836 5,836
2013 30
8,957 8,957
2014 30
2013 A+
HSBC C.l.
HSBC 2014
Aa3 2013
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2014 30 90
2014 30
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 1 256
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 2 11
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 4 172
439
2013 30 90
2013 30
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 1 310
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 2 15
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 4 221
546
14
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2014 30 2013
17

2013 31
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HSBC
2014 4 30
(2013 :102.47%)

AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY,

Series 1 165 256 0.49

AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY,

Series 2 7 11 0.02

AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY,

Series 3 5,500 7,595 14.39

AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY,

Series 4 99 172 0.33

Capeview Recovery Fund — Class C U/1 10,661 3,670 6.96

CQS ABS Feeder Fund Ltd. — Class B 1,864 9,838 18.65

Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. -

Initial Series Restricted Class 2,381 5,140 9.74

JPS Credit Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Ltd. —

Series A USD - Series 07-2012 6,973 8,180 15.50

King Street Europe Ltd. NYKSE — Class A, Series 2 72,607 10,317 19.55

0Z Europe Overseas Fund Il Ltd. — Tranche L Prime

Series 67 8,098 10,207 19.34
55,386 104.97
55,386 104.97
(2,622) (4.97)

52,764 100.00
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2014 30 2013 30
120.09 111.53
121.60 112.23
119.32 111.02
107.83

2014 30 2013 30

17._76% 12.70%
82.24% 87.30%
100.00% 100.00%
2014 30 2013 30
27.90% 39.00%
39.20% 33.20%
32.90% 27.80%
100.00% 100.00%
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2014 4 30

Capeview Recovery Fund — Class C 35,000 3,500

Sothic Capital European Opportunities Fund Ltd. — USD Class A

Restricted 59,283 7,166
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Limited — Class B 892 4,500
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. — Initial Series
Restricted 1,170 2,500
0Z Europe Overseas Fund Il Ltd. — Tranche L Prime Restricted No
Special Investments Class 900 1,149
King Street Europe Ltd. - NYKSE Class A, Series 7 7,082 1,000
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 1 53 79
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 4 39 66
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 2 5 7
** 2013 12 31 10,661
*
20
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 APRIL 2014

As ot As at
30 April 2014 30 April 2013

Metes US$000  USS000 US$000  USS'000
Assals
Portfolio of invesiments 55,386 62,604
Deblors L] 101 B3
Cash and bank balances 7 238 105

340 188

Tolal assals 55,726 62,882
Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8 {2.862) {1,700}
Total Liabilities 2,862) {1,700)

Met assels atirbutable (o the holders of redeamable
paricipating shares 52,764 61,182

Linisd,on 13

statements on pages 8 to 18 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Managemen! (Guemsey)
2014 and were signed on its behalf by

The noles on pages 10 to 18 form an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended Year ended
30 April 2014 30 April 2013

Motes  USS000 USS000 US$'000 US$000
Income
Mat capital gains 3 6,081 7,249
Finance cosis: interest " {24) 4}
Oparating axpanses 4 {1.207) [1.411)
Mel expenses {1,231} (1,415)
Change in nel assets aliributable lo the holders of redeemable
participating shares from investment activities 4,880 5,834

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 APRIL 2014

Yaar anded
30 April 2014

US5$'000 US$000
Met assets attribulable to the holders of radeemable
participating shares al the start of the year 61,182
Movement due to issue and redemption of redeamable
panicipating shares:
Amounts receivedireceivable an issuas 6,766
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions {20,044}

(13.278)

Change in net assats atiributable to the holdars of

redeamable participating shares from investment activities 4,860

Mat assals atiributable to the holders of redeemable

parlicipating shares al the end of the year 52,784

The noles on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Year ended
30 April 2013

USS000  USS'000

63,926

7.878

(16,556)
(8,578}

— 5834
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H3BC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUMITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Cradil Markel Opporunities Fund (he “Trustl™) is a sub-fund of HEBC Allernative Stratagy Fund, a Guermsay
unit trust schemea established as an umbrella fund which is authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Authorised
Collective Investment Schamaes (Class B) Rules, 2013,

This Trust was formerly known as the HSBC Distressed Markets Fund. The Trust was renamed on the 30 Oclober
2011, due lo a changa in the investment focus of the Trust. This resulled in other changes to the Trusl's scheme
particulars.

The Trusl owns 100% of tha shares in HSBC Credit Markel Opporiunities Investments Limited (the “Company™), a
BV registered company. The Trust also loaned monles (o the Company to fund its investing aclivities

The Company owns the investmenis listed in the Portfolio of Investments. The purpose of the Company is to ensure
that any withholding tax on distributions from such investments may be reclaimed,

These consolidated financial statements include ail the assets and liabilities of the Trust and the Company (togather
the “Fund™).

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounling policies have been applied consistently in dealing with itams which are considered
material in relation (o these consclidated financial slatements.

Basis of accounting
The consolidated financial statemanis have been prepared under the historical cos! convention medified by the
revaleation of invesiments and financial Eabilities in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting

Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Authorised Funds (the "SORP7) issuad by Invesimeant
Management Association in October 2010.

The consclidated financial stalements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements Include the results of the Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiary HSBC Credit
Markat Opporunites Invesiments Limited. The Manager does not consider the unconsolidated balance sheet of the
Trust to be of any relevance as the only reason for setting up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes
Accordingly no unconsolidated balance sheet is presented in these consolidated financial statemeants.

Functional and presenlational currency

The consolidated financial statermenis are presented in US Dollars because that is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Fund operates

Invesiments

Investmants in Investment funds are valued at the closing nel asset value per shara for the undarlying investmants
that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guemsey tima) on the Batance Shea! date. Investiments in underlying funds which
are not quoted on a recognised slock exchange or other trading facility are valued at the net asset values provided
by such entities or their adminisirators. These values may be unaudited or may themselves be estimates. In
addition, these entities or their administrators may nol provide values at all or in a timely manner and, lo the extant
that values are nol avallable, those investments will be valued by the Investment Manager using valuation
techniques appropriste to those investments. In determining falr value, the Investment Manager takes into
consideration, whare applicable, the impact of suspension of redemplions, Bguidation proceadings, investments in
side pockels and other significant factors. The Directors of the Manager have no reason to believe that the
valualions used are unreasonable.
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HEBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments {continued)

Realised and unrealised surpluses and deficits on investmants ane Included on the Consolidated Statermant of Total
Ratum, Realised gaing and losses on sales of securities are determined using the average cost method, Purchases
and sales of the investments ane accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

Bavenug

Imvestment incoma and deposit interest are included in the Consolidated Staterment of Total Return on an accruals
basis. All non-class specific incomae is allecated 1o aach share class in proportion (o the tolal net assets of the share
class during the year. All class specific income is allecated to the share class to which |t relates.

Expenses

Expenses are incleded in the Consolidated Statement of Total Returm on an accruals basis, All non-class specific
expenses are allocated to each share class in proportion 1o the total nel assets of the share class during the year,
All class specific expenses are allocated to tha share class to which thay relate.

 esih g

The preparation of consclidated financial stalements in accordance with the recognition and measwurement
principles of United Kingdoem Accounting Standards requinés managemen! t0 make judgements, estimates and
assumptions thal affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assats and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial staterments and the reported amounts of
income and expenses during the year.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that ara
believed to be reasonable under the circumsiances, the results of which form the basis for making the judgemenis
about carrying values of assats and liabiities thal ara not readily apparent from olher sources. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Eoreign currency transactions

Foraign currency transactions are recorded al the rale of exchange ruling al the date of the ransaction. Monelary
assels and liabilities dencminated in foreign currencies are translated to US Dollars at the foreign currency closing
axchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or loss as well as the
unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated investments in the Consolidated
Staternent of Total Return. Any realised axchange gains or losses as well as unraalised appraciation or depreciation
arising from non-US Dollar denominated paysbles and receivables and on foreign curency lransactions are
reflected in the Consolidated Staterment of Tolal Redurn,

Eqrward loreign gxchange coniracls

The unrealized appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated by referance
to the differance between the confracted rate and the rate fo closa oul the confract. Unrealised appreciation is
reported as an assel and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liability in the Consolidaled Balance Sheel. All net
gains or losses on forward foreign exchange contracts are recordad in the Consolidated Statement of Total Return.

Cash
Cash comprises current deposits with banks.

Cagh Flow Stalement

Under Financial Reporting Standard Mo. 1 {Revisad) the Fund iz exempl from the requirement lo prepare a cash
flow statement as it complies with the conditions for open-endad investrent funds
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HS8C CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs
costs arise from credit faciliies held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the Consclidated
Statement of Total Return on an accruals basis.

Eormation expense

In accordance with the Fund's Prespectus the formation costs may be amorlised over a period not exceeding five
yaars or such shorter period as the Manager may determine. This treatment is in line with the Prospectus but not in
lire with Uniled Kingdam Accounting Standards, this deparfure from United Kingdem Accounting Standards doas
not have a material impact on the results reporied in the consclidated financial statements.

Shares in issue
Redesmabla participating shares are redeemable at the oplion of the holder of redeemable paricipating shares and
will ba classified as financial Kabilities.

The net gainfloss on financial assets and fabilities are disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Tolal Return.
Realized gains and losses on sale of securilies are delermined using the average cost method.

3  MNET CAPITAL GAINS Year ended Year anded
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
US5000 US$'000
Met capital gains on non-derivallve invesiments 5,661 7.468
Met capital gainsi(losses) on derivative investmeants 430 {219)
Tatal nat capilal gains 6,091 7.248
4 OPERATING EXPENSES
Yaar anded Year andad
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
USs000 USF'000
Payabla 1o the Manager and its associales:
Management fee (203) {1,003)
Performance fee (161) (267)
{1,064) (1.270)
Payabile to the Trustes and ils associales
Trusiee fees (58) (64)
Other expenses.
Audit fees (24) (24)
Formation expensas {15} [15)
Other sundry axpenses {45) (38)
(B4} )

Total expenses {1,207} (1411}
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Undar the terms of the Trust deed dated 8 February 2007, HSBC Management {Guernsey) Limited was appointed
tha Manager of the Fund, dealing with its administrative affairs. The Manager receives a fee of 1.65% of the nat
gssel value per annum for the US Dollar Class and the Euro Class, a fee of 0.90% for the Institutional Class (US
Dollar), and a fee of 0.85% for the US Dallar R Class. The managemaent fee for the year amounted to US$802,727
(2013: US$1,003,204). The fee outstanding at the year end was USSNE (2013: US$5.333).

Under the terms of a Trust Deed daled 8 February 2007, the Manager appointed HSBC Alternative Investmanis
Limited as the Invesimen! Adviser of the HSBC Allernalive Stralegy Fund, which constitutes the HSBC Credit
Marke! Opportunities Fund, The Investment Adviser is enfiied to receive a performance fee if the percentage
increase in the net assel value per share al the relevant Valuation Point compared with the net asset value per
share al the siart of the current parformance pericd exceeds the calculated return on the relevant index (the “Index
Return®) and the net asset value per share at the start of the performance period is nol less than the net asset value
per share at the end of any previous performance pericd. The Index Return Is calculated as the percentage
increase of an imputed invesimenl in the index over the performance pariod, including appropriate compounding
effects whers applicable, with the index being updated in Ene with prevailing market interest rales as at the last
valustion poin! in March, Juna, Seplember and December. The performance fee for the year amounted to
US$160,686 (2013: US$266,605). The fee oulstanding at the year end was US$54, 257 (2013: US5150.206).

Under the terms of the Trust deed dated & February 2007, HSBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited was appointed the
Trustes. The Trustes receives a fee of 0.10% of the net asset value per annum. The frustee fee for the year
amounied o LSS58 363 (2013: US563.819). The fee oulstanding at the year end was USSNil (2013: USENI).

& DEBTORS

Az al As al
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
US$'000 USS'000
Sales awaiting setilement 64 -
Unrealised gain on forward forelgn exchange contracts (see Mote 12) - 22
Oiher debtors 37 61
101 83

7 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
As al As al
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
LIS $000 USS000
Cash and bank baktances 230 108

Cash balances are held by State Street Custodial Services (lreland) Limited (the “Custodian™). The Fund's cash is
maintained within the Cuslodian's sub-custodial network in segregaled accounts, The credit rating of State Street
Corporation, the parent company of the Custedian, at 30 April 2014 was A+ (2013: A+).

8 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

As at As at

30 April 2014 30 April 2013

USE000 US$'000

Loans payabie (see Note 11) {2,720) (1.302)

Amounis received in advance of shares subscribed - (131}

Accrued Management fee (see Nobe 5) - {5)

Accrued Performance fee (see Mole 5) {54) {158)

Unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange conlracts (see Note 12) {31) -
Other creditors (157} {103}

[2;952! (1,700}
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H38C CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUMITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

]

10

11

TAXATION STATUS

The umbrelta fund, HSBC Allernalive Strategy Fund, is exempt from Guemsey income tax under the income Tax
{Exempt Bodies) (Guernsay) Ordinances 1988 and Is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600 (2013: GBF
&00).

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES N ISSUE

Institutional Total Mumbar
US Dollar Class Euro US Dallar of Shares
Class  (US Dollar) Class R Class® in issue
Redeemable Participaling Shares
in issue at 1 May 2013 400,468.93  67.2087.24 61,833.94 - 520.600.11
Issued on Subscriptions 18,058.15 2108843 - 20,881.88 50.908.44
Redamptions {(104,971.60) (2517TB.7T8) (26,331.00) (7,180.00) (163,661.36)
Redeamable Participating Shares
In issue al 30 April 2014 31355648 6410691 35502984 1368186 426,847.19
Institutional Tatal Numbear
US Daolkar Class Eurg of Shares
Class (U5 Dollar) Class In issue
Redeemable Participating Shares
in issue at 1 May 2012 456,333.00 6212248  A5576.93 603,032.39
Issued on Subscriptions 63,431.65 5,174.78 430710 7291353
Rademplions {118,295.72) - (28,050.09) (146,345.81)
Redeemable Participating Shares
in isswe at 30 April 2013 400,468.93 §7,.207.24 61,833.84 528,800.11

All series of shares rank equally for allocation of income and axpanses and have the same rights attached to them
other than management les rates as noted in Note 5,

The Manager may limit the number of shares in the Trust which may be redeemed on any dealing day to nol more
than 15% of tha total number of shares in issue immediately before such date. Any redemplion of shares during the
first 12 calendar months from the date of subscription shall be subject to a redemplion fee payabla 1o the Fund and
equal 1o 5% of redemplion proceeds, Thereafter the redemption fee shall be 0%.

A maximum initial charge of up to 3% of subscription monies may be charged on all classes at the Manager's
discretion,

On 30 October 2011 the Trust changed its name from HSBC Distressed Markets Fund to HSBC Credit Market
Opportunities Fund due 1o a change in the Investment focus of the Trusl. As a resull the net assel value per share
at 30 October 2011 was rebased to USD 100 or Euro 100 as appropriate, and the number of shares held by each
shareholder was amended accordingly.

Instituticnal
US Dollar Clazs Eure US Dollar
Class (U5 Dollar) Class R Class® Tatal
UsS000 USS'000 USH000  USS000 USS000
Met Assets at 30 April 2014 37,654 T.795 5,840 1,475 52,784
MNet Assets at 30 April 2013 44 664 T.553 B.965 - 61,182
Met Azsets at 30 April 2012 48,155 6,307 11,464 * 83,926

*Tha US Dollar R Class launchad on 31 July 2013,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited acts as Trustee lo the Fund.

The Fund also placed monay on deposit with the Trustes on a regular basis throughout the year. The interes! rate
received is consistent with that received on @ normal commercial deposit,

116/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

HSBC AMernative Investments Limited (the “Investment Adviser”) is wholly owned by parbes that are affiliated with
ihe Manager and the Truslee.

Loan
The Fund has the ability to borrow up to 25% of its net asset value for a peried of up to six months to cover a cash
shortfall caused by mismaiched settiement dates on purchase and sale transactions and to fund redemplions; and
for investment purposes, subject 1o a maximum of 10% of the Fund's net asset value, 1o facilitale additional
investment in Investment Funds. There were no breaches of ihese borrowing resirictions by the Fund during the
yaar.

HSBC Private Bank {C.1.) Limited provided credit facilities to the Fund during the year. At the year end the loan
outstanding was US$2,720,000 (2013: US$1,302,000). The interest paid during the year was US524,331 (2013
US54,068) The interest rate prevalling al the Balance Shest date s 0.9900% (2013: 1.0288%). The loan is
repayable on demand.

There were no other relaled parly ransactions for the year other than fees paid to the Manager, Trustee and
Investment Adviser as outlined in Note 5.

12 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

The Fund may uliise derivaiive contracts for the purpose of hedging agains! foreign currency risk only and is
prohibited from investing in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. No more than 15% of the Fund's net
asset value may be ulilised as margin or premium to effect these transactions. Assets may be denominated In
currancies olher than the funcional currency of each share class and certain currency exposure will be hedged
back to the redevant share class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of forward foreign exchange
contracts or options on such contracts or by using such olher derivative instruments as may be available and having
the same or similar affect. The Investment Adviser retains the right to vary the policy on currency hedging at its
absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will ba mat by the holders of the relevant share class only.

The following forward exchange contracts were oulstanding 2l 30 April 2014 for the purposas of hedging foreign
currency assets on the HSBC Credil Market Opportunities Fund — Euro Class.

Maburity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Loss

uss
30-May-2014 EUR 4,205,042 US$ 5,827,725 State Strest Bank {31,208)
30-May-2014 EUR 28,291 Uss 39,231 State Sireet Bank {234)
Total unrealised losses on forward foraign axchange contracts {31,430)

The following forward exchange contracts were outstanding al 30 April 2013 for the purpeses of hedging foreign
currency assets on the HSBC Cradil Market Opportunities Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought  Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised Gain

uss
31-May-2013 EUR 80,580 USS 104,034 State Streat Bank 338
31-May-2013  EUR 6,776,211 USS 8,830,012 Stale Street Bank 21,307
Total unrealised gains on lonward foreign exchange contracts 21,643

13 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The main risks arising fram the Fund's financial instruments are market risk, liquidity risk and cradit risks.

Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from unceriainty aboul futuré prices of financial Instruments held. i represents the
potential loss the Fund might suffer throwgh holding market pesibons in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the asset allecation of the portfolio in order to minimise the risk associaled with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund's investment cbjective
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONMTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market risk {continued)

Market risk embodias the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price
rigk. The profitability of the Fund's investment programme depends to a great extent on commect assessments of the
future course of price movements of securities and equities and other investments. There can be no assurance that
the Managear will ba able o accuralely predict these price movemants. The sacurities markets have in recent years
baen characterised by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the investment strategy inlo which the
Investment Adviser has invested the Fund's assets, there I8 always some, and from time to time a significant,
degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund's investment portfclio at the Balance Sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of Investments
inclueded on page 19.

{a) Other price risk

Prica rigk |5 the risk that the value of the investments will luciuate as a result of changes in markel pricas (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual
invesiment, its issuer or sl factors affecting all invesiments fraded in the market.

The Fund is reguired to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restriclions a8s defined in the
Prospectus. The Fund's investment restrictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Trustee of the Fund and

reviewed monthly by the Manager. There are specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches,
and sHuations wihere holdings coma close to rastriction levals.

(b} Interest rate risk
The majority of the Fund’s financial assets are investments in investment funds which neither pay interest nor have
a maturity date. The underlying funds the Fund invesis in are exposed lo interest rale risk; however the Fund
mitigates this risk by diversifying its investmants.

The Fund is axposed io variable interest rales on cash and bank balances of US$238 768 (2013: US$105,458)

The Fund has borrowed US$2.720,000 (2013: US$1,302,000) at year end. To minimise its inlerest rate risk the
Fund enters into floating rate loan agreements. The interast rate prevailing at the Balance Sheet date is 0.9900%
{2013: 1,0208%),

{c} Foreign currancy risk

The Fund may invesi in financial Instruments and enter Inte transactions denominated In cumrencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently the Fund is exposed 1o risks that the axchange rate of its currency relative to
other foredgn currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the
Fund's assets or liabilties dencminated in curmencies other than US Dollars.

The Fund algo offers redeemable participating shares denominated in Ewro exposing the Fund to foreign currency
risk. This risk is mitigated by the Fund emtering into forward foreign exchange contracts as described further in this
note.

The Funds currency risk is managed on a manthly batis by the Invéstiment Advizer In accordance with policles and
procedures in place, All currency exposure at the portfolio level is hedged into the curmency of the relevant share
class on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards The Fund's overall currency positions and exposures
are monilored on a monthly basis by the Manager,

The following table sets cut the Fund's total exposure to foreign curmency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currancies at 30 April 2014.

Monetary Assels
Currency and Liabilites Total Forward FX Mat

US3'000 USS000 US5'000

Eura 5,836 5,826
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HES8C CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market risk {continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The folliowing lable sets out the Fund's total exposure to foreign cumency risk and the net exposure lo the foreign
currencias at 30 April 2013,

Assels
Currency and Liabilities Total Forward FX Met
Us§'000 UsS5000 US$000
Euro - 8,957 8,957

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty lo @ financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund,

The Fund Is exposed to credil risk on parties with whom it irades and also bears the risk of setement default.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to fransactions awaiting setilement. Risk relating o unsattied
\ransactions is considered small due 1o the shor settiement period involved and the high credit quality of the
brokers used. The Fund monilors the credit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further mitigate the
credil risk of underying investmants.

Substantially, all of the assels of the Fund are hald by State Stree! Custodial Services (lreland) Limited (the
*Custodian’). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect to securities hedd
by the Custodian to be delayed or limited.

The Fund monitors its risk by monitoring the credil quality and financial pasiions of the Cusiodian the Fund uses.
The cradit rating of Stale Sireet Corporation, the parent company of the Custodian, at 30 April 2014 was A+ (2013
A+). HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited, the Trusiee, provided cradit facilities lo the Fund during the pericd. The
credit rating of HSBC Holdings plc, the ultimate parent of the Trusiee, at 30 April 2014 was Aa3 as raled by
Moody's Ratings Agency. The credit rating of the Trustee at 30 April 2013 was AA- as rated by Standard and Poor's
Ratings Agency. The Trustee is no longer separately rafed.

in addition tha Fund has indirect exposure lo credit risk through the credil risk held by the underlying fund
investments,

The Fund minimisas concentrations of credit risk by underiaking iransactions with a large number of counterparties.

Liguidity risk
The main liability of the Fund Is the quarerly redemption of any shares that investors wish to redeem. The risk s
that the Fund might not be abla to liquidate investmenls positions in order to repay amounls demanded by its
shareholders.

The Fund's liquidity risk is managed on an engoing basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies and
procedures in place. It is not the normal policy of the Fund lo invest direclly in funds, limited parinerships or ather
vehiclas that have no liquidity issues. The Fund's overall liquidity risks are monitored on @ manthly basis by the
Manager,

The Fund's investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which periain lo the management of
liquidity risk and concenirations thereof. include restrictions in respect of investment in closed-snded funds,
restrictions in respect of redemplions, restrictions in respect of tha parcentage holding allowable in any individual
investment fund. Liquidity risk is monitored on a conlinuous basis by the Trustee of the Fund. There are specific
guidalines in place for monltoring and reporting breaches, and siluations where holdings come close to restriction
levels.

Al of the Fund's liabilities are payable within ane year and the loan is repayable on demand.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS [CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk [continued)

Al the 30 April 2014 the following investee funds had B redemption period of greater than 90 days in place to
redeem its invastment holdings.

Market Value

30 April 2014

US$'000

AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class YY'Y, Series 1 256

AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class YYY, Serias 2 11

AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class YYY, Series 4 172

438

Al the 30 April 2013 the reporting date the following investes funds had a redemplion period of greater than 90 days
in place to redeam its investment holdings.

Market Value

30 April 2013

USE'000

AG Super Fund Infermnational Lid. - Class YYY, Series 1 310
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Seres 2 15
AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class YYY, Saries 4 221
548

14 DISTRIBUTIOM POLICY
All shares in issue are accumulating shares. The Manager, therefore, does nol recommend the payment of a
dividend to the shareholders. All income will be "rolled-up®, and income will not be distributed bul will be retained in
the Fund and reflected in the net asset value per share,

15 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE

The following foreign exchange rate was used lo translate assets and liabilities inlo the reporting currency (US
Dollars):

Az at As at
30 April 2014 30 April 2013
Eurg 0.7254 0.7657

16 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 April 2014 and 30 April 2013, the Fund did not have any significant commitmeants of contingent Fabilities.
17 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

The US Dollar R Class launched on 31 July 2013.

There were no other significant events during the year ended 30 April 2014,
18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events subseguent to the year end date that require adjustment to, or disclosure in these
consolidaled financial statements.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2074 (UNAUDITED)

Security Description

USD (2013: 102.47%)

AG Super Fund Inlemational Lid, - Class YYY, Series 1

AG Super Fund International Lid. — Class Y'Y, Series 2

AG Super Fund Intemational Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 3

AG Super Fund Intemational Ltd. = Class YYY, Series 4
Capaview Recovery Fund - Class C N

C05 ABS Feader Fund Lid. - Class B

Haleyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Lid. — Initial Serias
Restrictad Class

JPS Credil Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Ltd, — Series A USD - Series
07-2012

King Streel Europe L1d, - NYKSE Class A, Series 2

0OZ Europe Overseas Fund || Lid, = Tranche L Prime Serias 67

Portfolio of Invesiments

Met current liabililes (ncluding derivatives)

Total net assols

Met asset value per share

HSBC Credit Market Opporiunities Fund = US Dollar Class

HSBC Cradit Market Opporiunities Fund — Institutional Class (US Daollar)
HEBC Credit Market Opporuniles Fund - Euro Class

HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund = US Dollar R Class®

*The: US Dollar R Class launched on 31 July 2013,

Portfolio Classification

Securities with an official steck exchange lsting
Unilisted securitias

Sector Allocation
Distrassed

Credit Long/Short
Event Driven
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Markeat
value % of total
US$'000 net assets

256 0.48

1 0.02
7,585 14.39
172 0.33
3,670 6.86
9,838 18.65
5,140 9.74
8,180 15.50
10317 18.55
10207 19.34

65385 0407
55,386 104.97

(2,622) (4.87)
52,764 100.00

As at As at

30 April 2014 30 April 2013

Us8120.08 Us5111.53
US5121.60 uUs§112.23

€119.32 €111.02
Us3107.83 .
As at As al

30 April 2014 30 April 2013
% of Portfalio % of Portfolio

17.76% 12.70%
82.24% 87.30%
100.00% 100.00%

As at As at

30 April 2014 30 April 2013
27.90% 38.00%
39.20% 33.20%
32.90% 27.80%
100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2014* (UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Mominal Cost
USS'000
Capeview Recovery Fund = Class C 35,000 3,500
Sales
Daescription Marminal Proceads
US$000
Sathic Capital Evrcpean Opportunities Fund Lid, = USD Class A Restricted 58,283 7,166
CQOS ABS Feeder Fund Limited — Class B &gz 4,500
Haleyon Offshore Assel-Backed Value Fund Lid. = Initial Serles Restricted Class 1,170 2,500
OZ Europe Overseas Fund |i Lid. = Tranche L Prime Resiricted No Spacial
invesiments Class 800 1,148
King Street Europe Lid. - NYKSE Class A, Serles 7 7.082 1,000
AG Super Fund International Lid. = Class YYY, Series 1 53 e
AG Super Fund Intemational Litd. - Class YYY, Series 4 38 66
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Serias 2 5 T

**The halding of 10,681 in the Portfolio of Investments relates o the roll-up as at 31 December 2013.
* Significant portfolic changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 2% of the net

assets of the Fund at the start of the year. In any avent, the 20 largest purchases and the 20 larges! sales must be
shown.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INFORMATION ON HSBC ALTERNATIVE STRATEGY FUND
HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund is an umbrella unit trust comprising the following funds (as al 30 April 2014);

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund = US Dollar Class

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund — Euro Class

HSBC Special Opportunities Fund — Insfitutional Class (US Dollar)®
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund = Institutional Class (Euro)®
HSBC Special Opportunities Fund — Institutional Class (Yen)*

collectively known as HSBC Spaecial Opportunities Fund

HSBC Credit Market Opportunithes Fund - US Dollar Class

HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund — Euro Class

HS8C Credit Markel Opportunities Fund — Institutional Class {US Dollar)
HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund — US Dollar R Class

collactively known as HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund (formerly known as HSBC Distressed Markets
Fund)

HESBC Next Genaration Fund — Founder Class

HSBC Next Generation Fund = Restricled Mandale Class
HSBC Next Generation Fund — US Dallar Class

HSBC Maxt Generation Fund — Euro Class

HSBC Mext Genaration Fund = Institutional Class (US Dollar)

collectively known as HSBC Next Generation Fund

*On 28 April 2014 the Board of Direclors of the Manager resolved o close these classes.

Shareholders should note that copies of the latest financial statements of each of the above Funds are
avalilable from the Manager free of charge on request.
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HSBC
26
84,062,415.41 8,720,635
7,853,223.22 814,693
76,209,192.19 7,905,942
546,705.06
139.40 14,461
HSBC
26
50,972,891.99 5,287,928
3,098,413.58 321,429
47,874,478._41 4,966,498
343,882.62
39,522.32
121.10 12,563

120.26 16,447
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26 100,000 1,721
100,000
100,000
26
0
Stephen Trevor
HSBC
HSBC 0
Neil Aitken
. . 0
Michael Quarrington
HSBC 0
Kate Charles

10
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HSBC

2,848

26
HSBC
1,842.9
HSBC Portfolio Selection Fund
HSBC
. i 88.8
HSBC Uni Folio
HSBC
154.8
HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund
HSBC UCITS
UCITS 163.8
HSBC UCITS AdvantEdge Fund
HSBC
. UCITS 266.4
HSBC Private Bank World Funds
plc
BFC
. 18.8
BFC Value Chain Fund
. 0
The Hermitage Fund
- , . 312.5
Various Private Equity
Syndicates
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131

23 103

26 29
UFJ 103.74
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HSBC
2013 12 31
2013 2012

7 36,828 3,821 52,662 5,463
8 25,688,322 2,664,907 21,854,069 2,267,141
25,712,109 2,667,374 14,390,080 1,492,827
500,000 51,870 500,000 51,870
51,900,431 5,384,151 36,744,149 3,811,838
11 1,611,053 167,131 1,913,361 198,492
11 2,039,964 211,626 2,234,123 231,768
12 13,241,206 1,373,643 11,857,455 1,230,092
16,892,223 1,752,399 16,004,939 1,660,352
35,008,208 3,631,751 20,739,210 2,151,486
35,045,036 3,635,572 20,791,872 2,156,949
13 157,762 16,366 157,762 16,366
34,887,274 3,619,206 20,634,110 2,140,583
35,045,036 3,635,572 20,791,872 2,156,949

2014 30
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HSBC
2013 12 31
2013 2012
3 72,516,247 7,522,835 67,351,175 6,987,011
8 1,103 114 4,480 465
_ - 14,444 1,498
72,517,350 7,522,950 67,370,099 6,988,974
3 24,020,046 2,491,840 28,827,423 2,990,557
3 12,332,506 1,279,374 16,786,697 1,741,452
4,673,521 484,831 4,543,466 471,339
1,155,616 119,884 1,623,032 168,373
4 516,158 53,546 629,292 65,283
6 (82) ) 477,974 49,585
2 148,952 15,452 81,402 8,445
401,635 41,666 133,857 13,886
2 7 15,834 1,643 34,613 3,591
(43,264,186) (4,488,227)  (53,137,756) (5,512,511)
29,253,164 3,034,723 14,232,343 1,476,463
10 - - - -
29,253,164 3,034,723 14,232,343 1,476,463
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HSBC
2013 12 31

2013 157,762 16,226 20,634,110 2,122,218 20,791,872 2,138,444
- - 29,253,164 3,008,688 29,253,164 3,008,688
- - (15,000,000) (1,542,750) (15,000,000) (1,542,750)

1 150
2013 12 31 157,762 16,226 34,887,274 3,588,156 35,045,036 3,604,382
2012 157,762 16,226 21,401,767 2,201,172 21,559,529 2,217,398
- - 14,232,343 1,463,796 14,232,343 1,463,796
- - (15,000,000) (1,542,750) (15,000,000) (1,542,750)

150
2012 12 31 157,762 16,226 20,634,110 2,122,218 20,791,872 2,138,444
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HSBC

2013 12 31

2013 2012
29,253,164 3,034,723 14,232,343 1,476,463
15,834 1,643 34,613 3,591
- - 477,974 49,585
(82) ® - -
29,268,916 3,036,357 14,744,930 1,529,639
(10,822,186) (1,122,694) 4,831,768 501,248
387,441 40,193 (5,278,384) (547,580)
18,834,171 1,953,857 14,298,314 1,483,307
18,834,171 1,953,857 14,298,314 1,483,307
- - (1,369) (142)
82 9 (477,974) (49,585)
82 9 (479,343) (49,727)
(15,000,000) (1,556,100)  (15,000,000) (1,556,100)
(15,000,000) (1,556,100)  (15,000,000) (1,556,100)
3,834,253 397,765 (1,181,030) (122,520)
21,854,069 2,267,141 23,035,098 2,389,661

12 31

25,688,322 2,664,907 21,854,069 2,267,141

132/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC
HSBC 1986 9 25
HSBC
HSBC
L.P. L.P.
L.P. L.P. L.P.
HSBC L.P.
@) IFRS
2008 IFRS
()
IFRS 9 2009 11 12 IAS 39
IFRS 9
1AS 39
2017 1 1

©
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10
33 1/3
3
2013 1 1
IFRS 10
IFRS 12
IFRS 13
IFRS 12 5
629,231 2012 351,124 2013 12 31
HSBC

HSBC
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HSBC UCITS BFC HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC
LP LP
LP HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC USA
HSBC HSBC
2013 12 31
24,674,035 2012 3,718,551
143,149 2012 155,710
HEBC= A e b (Henided Jaaa |
e 2 - =S AR g e P At i R G Bl I
T z2de—~1F0-GP-1) n-idfrz—-irgnm? Ho AN G- 3
iea GE-1Jisal T |
FRE 5 100% FRE 5 100% FRE 5 100%
PRSI PR et Sl S e S il HA) - BT Ty - HOEAF = GF - 0 27w F
[ i | H IR VA R nI-GF-Jizal FrE+mr100%
FRE 55 100% FRAE 5 100%
GP 2014 3 11
2013 2012
27,604
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12 31

12 31

25,688,322

2012 12 13

2013

2013

12 31
1989
600

1,103
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- 477,974
(82) 505,578
162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
128,614 1,008,962 1,137,576
3,744 12,090 15,834
132,358 1,021,052 1,153,410
30,144 6,684 36,828
33,888 18,774 52,662
HSBC C.1.
2012 21,854,069 2013
2012 4,480

2013 2012
23,705,178 12,684,742
2,006,391 1,444,957
540 260,381
25,712,109 14,390,080

10 2012
10
0

2013 2012
1,611,053 1,913,361
2,039,964 2,234,123

3,651,017 4,147,484
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1 100,000
14
PBCI PBCI
2013 12 31
2012 1,623,032
15
2013 12 31
7,169,184,005
16

€))

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2013 2012
12,814,108 11,434,002
427,098 423,453
13,241,206 11,857,455
2013 2012
100,000 100,000
157,762 157,762
2013 2012
1,103 4,480
(9,740,883) (11,993,610)
(10,051,195) (13,826,722)
(640,940) (898,535)
(401,635) (133,857)
HSBC C.l.
PBCI 1,155,616
6,644,254,961 2012

HSBC
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12 31
2013 2012
25,688,322 21,854,069
25,688,322 21,854,069
(b)
HSBC ALCO
(©)
2013 2012
735,427 989,870
304,808 475,210
199,649 129,156
25,788 1,803
220 852
86,426 29,559
2013 12 31 5%
5%
2013 2012
36,771 49,494
19,562 25,238
9,982 6,458
1,289 90
11 43
©)

©)
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Q)
8
@
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
Q)
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
/
HSBC

HSBC
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HSBC

2013 12 31

38,159,068

38,159,068

38,159,068
(1,686,712)

36,472,356
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Motes 2013 2012
uss uss

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment T 36,828 52,662
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 8 25,688,322 21,854,069
Amounts due from funds under management  3&9 25,712,109 14,390,080
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary
companies 500,000 500,000
Current assets 51,900,431 36,744,149
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companies 1 1,611,053 1,913,361
Amounts due to related companies 11 2,039,964 2,234,123
Other liabilities 12 13,241,206 11,857,455
Current liabilities 16,892,223 16,004,939
Met current assets 35,008,208 20,739,210
Met assets 35,045,036 20,791,872
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Called up share capital 13 157,762 157,762
Retained earmnings 34,887,274 20,634,110
Total shareholders' equity 35,045,036 20,791,872

The financial statements on pages 6 to 19 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 May 2014 and
are si its behalf by:

; MT ST

alternative director to Kate Charles) M QUARRINGTON
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral pant of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2013
MNotes 2013 2012
uss Uss Uss Uss
INCOME
Management, Trustee &
Performance fees 3 72,516,247 67,351,175
Interest income B 1,103 4,480
Sundry income - 14,444
72,517,350 67,370,099

EXPENSES
Commissions 3 24,020,046 28,827,423
Investment advisory fees 3 12,332,506 16,786,697
Trustee, custody & Transfer 4,673,521 4,543 466
Agency fees
Salaries and benefits 1,155,616 1,623,032
Other expenses 4 516,158 629,292
{Gamn)/ loss on sale of shares & (82) 477,974
Foreign exchange loss 2 148,952 81,402
Management fees paid to 401,635 133,857
Eroup companies
Depreciation 28&7 15,834 34613

(43,264,186) (53,137,756)

2

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION eI 14,232,343
TAXATION 10 - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 29,253,164 14,232 343

The Group has no other component of other comprehensive income other than the profit for the vear.

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral pant of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 11 DECEMBER
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AT 1 JANUARY 2013

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year

Transactions with owners,

recorded directly in equity:
Dividend paid (U55150 per share)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

AT 1 JANUARY 2012

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year

Transactions with owners,

recorded directly in equity:
Dividend paid (LUS$150 per share)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

Share Capital Retained Earnings Tuatal Equity
Uss Uss uss

157,762 20,634,110 20,791,872

- 29,253,164 29253164

- {15,000,000) (15,000,000)

157,762 34,887,274 35,045,036
Share Capital Retained Earnings Total Equity
uss Uss Uss

157,762 21,401,767 21,559,529

- 14,232,343 14,232,343

- (15,000,000) (15,000,000)

157,762 20,634,110 20,791,872

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

= Depreciation

- Loss on sale of shares
- Unrealised gain on sale of shares

Notes

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in

working capital

Changes in working capital:
= Decrease! (increase) in other assets
- Decrease in other liabilities

Met cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Cash flows from sale of shares

Cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid to shareholders

Cash used in financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING

OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

2013 2012

uss USS
29,253,164 14,232,343
15,834 34,613
- 477,974
(82) =
29,268,916 14,744,930
(10,822,186) 4,831,768
387,441 (5,278,384)
18,834,171 14,208 314
18,834,171 14,208,314

> {1,369)

82 (477.974)

82 (479,343)
(15,000,000) (15,000,000)
(15,000,000) (15,000,000)
3,834,253 (1,181,030)
21,854,069 23,035,008
25,688,322 21,854,069

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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10
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the ‘Company’) was registered in Guernsey on 25 September
1986. The Company is domiciled in Guemnsey and a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Investment
Holdings (Guemnsey) Limited which is registered in Guemnsey. The ultimate parent company is HSBC
Haoldings ple, which is a publicly quoted company incorporated in the United Kingdom.

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™).

The principal activities of the Group is the management of a variety of funds and acting as General Partner
to Emerging Growth Real Estate Fund IT L.P., Vintage III Special Situations L.P., Vintage I Secondary L.P.,
Real Estate Club Collective L.P., Secondary Club Deal [ L.P. and HSBC Downing Student Accommodation
Portfolio L.P.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(2) The Group prepares its financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS") which give a true and fair view and are in compliance with the Companies
{Guernsey) Law, 2008. [FRS comprise accounting standards issued by the Intermational
Accounting Standards Board and its predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are in issue but not yet effective;

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments was published on 12 November 2009 and will replace [1AS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed
measurement model and establishes two primary measurement categories for financial assets:
amortised cost and fair value. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The standard eliminates the
existing IAS 39 eategories of held to maturity, available for sale and loans and receivables. The
standard is effective for annual periods currently no sooner than 1 January 2017 though no
effective date has been set by the International Accounting Standards Board,

{c) The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and assumpiions about
future conditions. Use of available information and application of judgement are inherent in the
formation of estimates. Actual results in the future may differ from those reported,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recogmised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected,

In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary for a

fair presentation of the Group's consolidated comprehensive income, balance sheet and cash flows
in these consolidated financial statements have been made.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
considered material in relation to the Group's consolidated financial statements:

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates (*the functional currency’). These financial statements
are presented in US dollars, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Any resulting exchange
differences are included in the profit or loss for the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using
the rate of exchange at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional curmency using the rate of exchange at the
date the fair value was determined.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation,

Depreciation is calculated at the following annual rates so as to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method:

Fumniture, fixture and fittings 100
Computer hardware and related software 33 1/3%

Computer software costs, other than those specifically related to hardware, are fully written off and are
expensed as incurred.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Such investments are normally those with less than three months® to maturity from the
date of acquisition, and include cash, current accounts with banks, money at call, loans and advances to
banks.

. T
Management fees and trustee fees are accounted for on an accruals basis. Performance fees are recognised
when the entitlement to performance fiee is reasonably established.

Inm-grmrpbalaums and lmmactmns, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group, The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, varizble returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums
through its power over the entity. The financial stalements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases,

y : , lici
Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in Note 2
to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements. The Group has adopted the following
standards and amendments to standards, including any consequential amendments to other standards, with
a date of initial application of 1 January 2013,

- IFES 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
- IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
- IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
As a result of IFRS 12, the Group has expanded its disclosures about its interests in subsidiaries in note 5.
3. FEES

Management and trustee fees

The Group receives management fees and trustee fees based on a percentage of the underlying net asset
value or total commitments of the respective funds. Management and trustee fees are recognised on an
accruals basis. Fiduciary Income from the Group's regulated fiduciary activities totalling US$629,231
(2012: USS351,124) have been earned in the year ended 31 December 2013,

ok

The Group, at its discretion, has agreed to pay return commissions to those branches, fellow subsidiaries,
affiliates and associates of the HSBC Group entities and certain approved third parties introducing
subscribers to funds under management. The return commissions are two fold: firstly a return of the
initial charge and secondly an ongoing trailer commission based on the net asset value of monies
introduced by units and which remain invested. Commissions are aceounted for on an accruals basis.

Investment advisory fees
The Group pays investment advisory fees to fellow subsidiaries, associates of the HSBC Group entities

and third parties providing investment advice to the funds under management. Investment advisory fees
are accounted for on an accruals basis.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. FEES (Continued)
Manager's performance fees

Under the management agreements with the HSBC UCITS AdvantEdge Fund Ple, BFC Value Chain
Fund, HSBC Portfolio Selection Funds, HSBC Alternative Strategy Funds, HSBC Unifolic Funds,
HSBC Alternative Portfolio Funds, Private Equity Direct Investment Trust, Secondary Club Deal 1, LP,
Vintage I Secondary, L.P, Vintage I Energy, Vintage I Special Situations L.P., HSBC European
Private Equity Syndicate, HSBC European Private Equity Syndicate II, HSBC European Private Equity
Syndicate [lI, HSBC Asian Ventures Syndicate, HSBC Asian Ventures Syndicate II, HSEC Asian
Private Equity Syndicate, HSBC Asian Private Equity Syndicate II, HSBC Capital USA Private Equity
Syndicate, HSBC Latin America Private Equity Syndicate, HSBC Guggenheim Aviation Il Syndicate,
Partners Group Secondary Syndicate, Republic Carlyle Syndicate, Republic Carlyle Europe Syndicate,
Republic Private Equity Trust and Republic Private Equity Syndicate, the Group is entitled, subject to
performance of the underlying vehicle, a performance fee. The Group has the ability to share any such
performance fees received with associates and investment advisers as appropriate. Performance fees
totalling US$24,674,035 have been eamed in the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: US$3,718,551).
An expense for performance fees payable is recognised when the right to recover performance fee
income is established.

4. OTHER EXPENSES

Other expense include rental charges of US$143,149 (2012: US$155,710) where the Company is the
lessce. The premises of the Company are rented and this agreement has expired. The renewal of the
property lease is currently being negotiated.

5. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Set out below is a list of subsidiaries of the Company.

HEBC MAMAGEMENT (CUERNSEY) LIMITED

g U NE) VINTAGE il SPECIAL VINTAGE | SECONDARY
100% 100% 100%
PRl Cwrarabhip interest Cwnicatip Infeceat
COLLECTIVE GF CiTED SECONGANTCLUB DEAL 10 HOSAP GP LIMITED
100% 100% 100k
Crwmarahip Intereat Croemanibip Inferest e e

The principal place of business is Guernsey, Channe] Islands for the above vehicles
Real Estate Club Collective GP Limited was liquidated on the 11 March 2014,
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6. (GAIN)/LOSS ON SALE OF SHARES
2013 2012
Uss Uss
Met cash loss - 27,604
Unrealised gain (82) -
Realised loss - 477,974
(82) 505,578
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Fixtures and Computer Total
fittings hardware &
related software
Uss Uss uss
COST
At 1 January 2013 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
Additions c 4 =
Disposal - - é
At 31 December 2013 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2013 128,614 1,008,962 1,137,576
Charge for year 3,744 12,090 15,834
Disposal - - -
At 31 December 2013 132,358 1,021,052 1,153.410
NET BOOK AMOUNT 30,144 6,684 36,828
At 31 December 2013
At 3] December 2012 33,888 18,774 52,662

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2013 are balances with a related party, HSBC

Private Bank (C.L) Limited, of US$25,688,322 (2012: US521,854,069). During 2013 the Group eamed
USS 1,103 interest on these balances (2012: US$4,480).
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
9. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT
2013 2012
Liss Uss
Management fees 23,705,178 12,684,742
Other fees 2,006,191 1,444,957
Trustee fees 540 260,381
25,712,109 14,390,080

10. TAXATION

Following the passing of the Income tax (Zero 10) (Company Intermediate Rate) { Amendment)
(Guemsey) Ordinance 2012 on 13 December 2012, with effect from 1 January 2013 the Company's
income arising from specific regulated fiduciary business is taxed at the company intermediate rate of
10%. The remainder of the Company's income is taxed at the company standard rate of 0%.

The Group has USSnil taxeble fiduciary profit in the year ended 31 December 2013,

The subsidiaries are exempt from Guemnsey income tax under the Income Tax (Exempt Bodies)
(Guernsey) Ordinances 1989 and are charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600 each.

11. AMOUNTS DUE TO GROUP COMPANIES

2013 2012

USs Uss

Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companies 1,611,053 1,913,361
Amounts due to related companies 2,039,964 2,234,123
3651017 4,147 484

Amounts due to Group Companies are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

12. OTHER LIABILITIES

2013 2012
Uss Uss
Commission payable 12,814,108 11,434,002
Other creditors 427,098 423,453

12,241 206 11,857,455

150/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

16
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
13. SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
Authorized: £ £
104,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 100,000 100,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid: Uss Uss
100,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
(translated at historic cost) 157,762 157,762

14.

15.

The ordinary shares which represent the equity interests have the following rights attached:

* They camry the right to any fixed dividend as may from time to time be recommended by the
Directors and declared by the Company;

¢ They have voting rights with each share carrying one vote;

e All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length
transactions and have been disclosed in these financial statements.

Apart from transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered
into the following transactions with its fellow subsidiary companies and related companies:

2013 2012

Uss Uss
INCOME STATEMENT
Interast income 1,103 4,480
Commissions (9,740,883) (11,993,610)
Investment advisory fees (10,051,195) (13,826,722)
Trustee and custody fees (640,940) (898,535)
Management fees (401,635) (133,857

All staffs acting on behalf of the Company are employed by HSBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited
(PBCI). On a monthly basis, PBCI invoices the Company for staff wilised in the Company’s
operations. For the year ended 31 December 2013, PBCI billed the Company a total of
US$1,155,616 (2012: USS1,623,032) for salaries and benefits.

FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

The total net asset of funds under the Group's management at 31 December 2013 was US$6,644,254,961
(2012: USET,169,184,005).
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. RISK MANAGEMENT

(8) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet
its obligations under a contract of fund administration. The Group has standards, policies and
procedures dedicated to controlling and monitoring risks from all such activities,

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with HSBC Group companies where management
considers the credit risk to be minimal.

Fees due from funds under management which are short term in nature. The following table
provides a breakdown of credit exposure excluding collateral held or other credit enhancements:

At 31 December
2013 2012
Uss Uss
Cash and cash equivalents 25,688,322 21,854,069
25,688,322 21,854,069

{b) Market risk management
Market risk is the risk that the value of funds under management decreases with a resultant effect on
income.

The Group manages market risk through risk limits approved by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) of HSBC Group.

(c) Foreign exchange exposure
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s foreign exchange exposure arises from changes in
the US$ equivalent value of amounts denominated in foreign currencies as set out below:

2013 2012
Uss Uss
ASSETS
Euro 735427 989,870
British Pound 304,808 475,210
Swiss Franc 199,649 129,156
Japanese Yen 25,788 1,803
Chinese Yuan 220 852
LIABILITIES
British Pound 86,426 29,559
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A 5 percent strengthening of the US dollar against the following currencies at 31 December 2013
would have resulted in the profits (losses) shown below. A 5 percent weakening of the US dollar
would have had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant,

2013 2012

UsE Uss
Euro 36,771 49,494
British Pound 19,562 25,238
Swiss Franc 9,982 6,458
Japanese Yen 1,289 o0
Chinese Yuan 11 43

(d) Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in realising assets or otherwise
raising funds to meet commitments.

The Group uses various sources to provide a stable funding. These include maintaining bank
balances in instant access call accounts, inter-group funding and the Company's shareholder’s
equity.

(€]

e’

Capital risk management

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital Consists of called up
share capital and retained earnings. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level
of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company is regulated by the Guemsey Financial Services Commission which sets and
monitors capital requirements for the Company as described on page 20. Management regularly
monitors the Company's capital to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Guernsey
Financial Services Commission.

(f) Interest risk management

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk is limited to its cash and cash equivalents (note 8). The
Group only maintains interest bearing call accounts and as such interest rate risk is minimal,

(g2) Operational risk managementi

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising through fraud, unauthorised activities, error, omission,
inefficiency, systems failure or from external events. It is inherent to every business organisation
and covers a wide spectrum of issues.

The HSBC Group manages this risk through a controls-based environment in which processes are
documented, authorisation is independent and transactions are reconciled and monitored. This is
supported by an independent programme of periodic reviews undertaken by internal audit, and by
monitoring external operational risk events, which ensures that the HSBC Group stays in line with
best practice and takes account of lessons learned from publicised operational failures within the
financial services industry.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The HSBC Group has codified its operational risk management process by issuing a high level
standard. This explains how the HSBC Group manages operational risk by identifying, assessing,

monitoring, controlling and mitigating the risk, rectifying operational risk events, and implementing
any additional procedures required for compliance with local regulatory requirements. The
processes undertaken to manage operational risk are determined by reference to the scale and nature
of each HSBC Group operation. The HSBC Group standard covers the following:

s Operational risk management responsibility is assigned at a senior management level within the
business operation;

s Information systems are used to record the identification and assessment of operational risks
and generate appropriate, regular management reporting;

* Operational risks are identified by risk assessments covering operational risks facing each
business and risks inherent in processes, activities and products. Risk assessment incorporates a
regular review of risks identified to monitor significant changes;

» Operational risk loss data 15 collected and reported to senior management. This report covers
aggregate operational risk losses and details of incidents above a materiality threshold; and

= Risk mitigation, including insurance, is considered where this is cost-effective.

Local management is responsible for implementation of the HSBC Group standard on operational risk.

(h) Reputational risk management

The safeguarding of HSBC"s reputation is of paramount importance to its continued prosperity and
is the responsibility of every member of staff. Reputational risks can arise from social, ethical or
environmental 1ssues, or as a consequénce of operational nsk events. As a banking group, HSBC's
good reputation depends upon the way in which it conducts its business, but it can also be affected
by the way in which clients, to whom it provides financial services, conduct themselves.

Reputational risks are considered and assessed by the Board, HSBC Group Management Board, the
Risk Management Committee, subsidiary company boards, board committees andfor senior
management during the formulation of policy and the establishment of HSBC standards. Standards
on all major aspects of business are set for HSBC and for individual subsidiaries, businesses and
functions. These policies, which are an integral part of the internal control systems, are
communicated through manuals and statements of policy and are promulgated through internal
communications and training. The policies set out operational procedures in all areas of reputational
risk, including money laundering deterrence, envirommental impact, anti-corruption measures and
employee relations.

HSBC Group internal audit function monitors compliance with policies and standard.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

USs
Net Assets
et assets after adjustments 38,159,068
Position Risk .
Counterparty Risk -
Met Asset after adjustment, contingent liabilities and risks 38,159,068
SATISFACTION OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial resources 38,159,068
Financial resources required (1.686,712)

NET SURPLUS FINANCIAL RESOURCES 36,472,336
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HSBC

2014 30

2014 30
21,031,533 2,181,811
28,409 2,947
157 16
500,000 51,870
12,296,710 1,275,661
33,856,809 3,512,305
4,453,301 461,985
10,315,816 1,070,163
14,769,117 1,532,148
157,762 16,366
30,258,772 3,139,045
(20,000,000) (2,074,800)
8,671,158 899,546
19,087,692 1,980,157

33,856,809 3,512,305
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HSBC
2014 30
2014 30
2,460,672 255,270
670,454 69,553
(475,874) (49,367)
(972,787) (100,917)
(243,256) (25,235)
Aztec Financial Services (Guernsey) Limited (15,717) (1,630)
HSBC Securities Services (lIreland) Limited (155,000) (16,080)
(51,598) (5,353)
(683,147) (70,870)
(165,726) (17,192)
368,020 38,178
304,458 31,584
304,458 31,584
672,478 69,763
31,075 3,224
(91,769) (9,520)
(22,512) (2,335)
(42,410) (4,400)
(209,350) (21,718)
(334,966) (34,749)
337,512 35,013
337,512 35,013
337,512 35,013
337,512 35,013

337,512 35,013
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HSBC C.I.
HSBC Private Bank C.l. Limited

26 800 2,992

60 GY1 1EE

HSBC 20 31 HSBC

State Street Custodial Services Ireland Limited

26 200,000 3,441.6

HSBC

State Street Fund Services Ireland Limited

26 350,000 6,022.8

HSBC

HSBC
HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

26 1,078,543 1,189

SW1A 1JB 78
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HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) Limited

26 8 1,000,005 374
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
6,450
HSBC HSBC
26 22,422,137,143
26 960 5,245 7,252.5
4,878 8,922
26 29 UFJ
26 781
HSBC C.l.
HSBC Private Bank C.I. Limited

1987

State Street Custodial Services Ireland Limited
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COBO
1987
1987
2007 POI COBO
COBO

2013 27 COBO 2013

2008 10 29 1987
POI
2002 2003
HM
2008 11 24 2008
2014 2013
1990
1998
2008 10 29 POI C0BO 1987
2008 12 15
2008 ACEIS 2008
RCIS 2008 2009 30 RCIS
2008 12 15
COBO ACEIS
1987 ACEIS 6.02

2008

2008 ACEIS

1987

COBO
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D.E. D.E. Shaw & Co., L.L.C.

(Redwood Opportunity Offshore Fund, Ltd.)

50%

Redwood Capital Management, L.L.C.
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CQs
(CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Limited)
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CQs

CQS
CQS Cayman Limited Partnership

Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd.

Tyrus Capital Management Company Limited

]
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il Ltd.

Beach Point Capital Management LP
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BVI
(Davidson Kempner International (BVI), Ltd.)

()

)

@iv)

Davidson Kempner International Advisors, L.L.C.
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King Street Europe, Ltd.

/
King Street
Capital Management, L.P.
JPS
JPS Credit Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Limited
JP UK
JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited
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AG Super Fund International Limited

Angelo, Gordon & Co., L.P.

CQS ABS
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Limited

CQS ABS

CQS ABS

CQs
CQS Cayman Limited Partnership
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

We have audited the consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements”) of HSBC Special Opportunities
Fund (the “Trust”) together with its subsidiary (together the “Fund”) for the year ended 30 April 2014 which
comprise the Consolidated Statement of Total Return, the Consolidated Statement of Movement in Net Assets
Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, and the related
notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards.

This report is made solely to the Trust's shareholders in accordance with our Terms of Engagement as detailed in
our letter of 25 July 2014 and rule 4.02(3) of the Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 2013.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's shareholders those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’'s shareholders as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities set out on page 6, the Manager is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Manager; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund's affairs as at 30 April 2014 and of its result for the year
then ended;

are in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the trust deed.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the terms of our engagement letter require us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

the Manager has not kept proper accounting records; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
are necessary for the purpose of our audit.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants

20 New Street, St Peter Port
Guernsey, GY1 4AN

Date: 29 September 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HSBC CREDIT MARKET
OPPORTUNITIES FUND

We have audited the consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements”) of HSBC Credit Market
Opportunities Fund (the “Trust”) together with its subsidiary (together the “Fund”) for the year ended 30 April 2014
which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Total Return, the Consolidated Statement of Movement in Net
Assets Attributable to the Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares, the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the
related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards.

This report is made solely to the Trust's shareholders in accordance with our Terms of Engagement as detailed in
our letter of 25 July 2014 and rule 4.02(3) of the Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules, 2013.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's shareholders those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’'s shareholders as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Manager and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities set out on page 6, the Manager is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Manager; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund's affairs as at 30 April 2014 and of its result for the year
then ended;

are in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the trust deed.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the terms of our engagement letter require us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

the Manager has not kept proper accounting records; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
are necessary for the purpose of our audit.

KPMG Channel Islands
Limited

Chartered Accountants
20 New Street, St Peter
Port

Guernsey, GY1 4AN

Date: 29 September 2014
196/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

197/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC
2013 12 31 HSBC
1ASB
2008 262
3
APB

2013 12 31

1ASB

2008

20
2 2013 12 31
2008

2014 30

198/200



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

We have audited the consolidated financial statements (the “financial statement”) of HSBC Management
(Guernsey) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2013 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and related notes. The
financia reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’).

This report is made solely to the Company’s member, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s member
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
member as abody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out on page 3, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the Consolidated financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’'s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financia information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in performing the audit. If we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED (continued)

Opinion on financia statements
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In our opinion the financial statements:

e (give atrue and far view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its tota
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e arein accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the |ASB; and
e comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Opinion on other matters

We have examined the statement of financial resources set out on page 20 and in our opinion the financial
resources requirement specified in Rule 2 of the Licensees (Capital Adequacy) Rules was satisfied at 31 December
2013.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e the Company has not kept proper accounting records; or
e thefinancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief are
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey

Date: 30 May 2014
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